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Preface

Shenyang.Imperial Palace is one of the
two ancient palace groups preserved intact in
China. It was built from 1625 to 1636, during
the reigns of Nurhaci and Huangtaiji, found-
ers of the Qing Dynasty. Some affiliated
buildings were built from 1743 to 1782, dur-
ing the reign of the emperor Qian Long. As
the political stage of the Qing foundation, it
presented a long historical picture of the Qing
Dynasty. After the Qing capital was moved
to Beijing in 1644, the Palace was honoured
by the name of “the Palace of Convoy Capi-
tal” and that was much worshipped by rulers
throughout the Qing Dynasty. The later em-
perors such as Kang Xi, Qian Long, Jia Qing

and Dao Guang, etc. visited east to Shenjing

(Shenyang) for inspection tours from Beijing.

When they had made pilgrimages to their an-
cestral tombs around Shenyang, they certain-
ly returned to the Shenyang Palace for visit
and residance. Here, they performed ceremo-
nious sacrifical rites and ceremonies.

Nurhaci, the founder of the Shenyang
Palace, was the chieftain of Nuzhen people,
who started to unite the Nuzhen tribes with
the thirteen armoured followers when he was
25-year old,due to that his grandfather and
father were killed. In 1616 (the 44th year dur-
ing the Wan Li in the Ming Dynasty),
Nurhaci claimed himself Khan at the
Hetu’ala (Xin Bin, Liaoning province), estab-

lishing the Great Jin (called the Later Jin in

history of China). Afterword? the -capital of

the Later Jin was changed three times outside

Shanhaiguan. Finally, Nurhaci moved his
capitai to Shenyang in 1625 (the 10th year
during the Tian Ming peroid), the next year
he died and ended his career of legendary
warfare. His successor, Huangtaiji, went on
to build the imperial palace such as the
Nanchao House, the Great Gate of Qing, the
Hall of Civil Affairs, the Phoenix Pavilion,
the Palace of Tranquility and the other mid-
dle part buildings, on the built foundation of
the Khan (Imperial) Palace, the Grand Ad-
ministration Hall and the Pavilions of Ten
Princes. In 1743 (the 8th year of Qian Long’s
reign) during his first visit to Shenyang for in-
spection tours, Qian Long held a sacrifical
rite at the Qiaoshan and he abserved carefully
the dimensions of the palace and then or-
dered that new palace buildings be built at a
large—scale for the accommodation and com-
fort of the touring royal family. The Eastern
and Western Apartments were added to be
constructed early or late as well as the
(where the Old

Manchurian Archives is housed), the Pavilion

Chongmo  Pavilion
of Literary Sources (where the comprehensive
collection of the Four Kinds of Classics is
housed), the Opera Stage, the Hall of Auspi-
cious Patronage and the western other
complexes. The Aisingioro Ancestral Temple
(Tai Miao) was reconstructed at the left of
the Great Gate of Qing. At the Mid—18th
century, during the reign of the emperor Qian

Long, the design of today’s Shenyang Impe-

rial Palace was finalized.
Geographically the whole palace is di-
vided into three parts, the east, the middle

_and the west. The Grand Administration

Hall, at the north end of the east part, looks
splendid in green and gold. On a space of 195
metres long to the north—south and 80 metres
wide to the west—east before the Grand Ad-
ministration Hall, the Pavilions of Ten
Princes, just like the swallow’s wings, range in
five on either side of it, which forms a group
of pavilion countyard that looks very
spacious and grand. It was once a com-
manding center of military—administrative
organization of the Eight—Banner. The
Grand Hall used by notable emperors being
built so closely with the Pavilions of Ten
Princes used by the nobility and princes of
the Eight—Banner, which caused emperors
working together with ministers, and was
unique in the history of ancient Chinese pal-
ace architecture. The architectural form of
the Eight—Banner Pavilions (the Pavilions of
Ten Princes) is just the reflection of the
Eight—Banner system on the architectural
form of the early Qing Dynasty. After he had
already succeeded the throne, Huangtaiji, in
order to strengthen the royal right, enhanced
the feudalism and weakened the power of the
Eight—Banner  chieftains, changed the
Eight—Banner Pavilions to the location for
being on duty and handling besiness of each
Eight—Banner office.

The architectural styles of the Grand

Hall and the Pavilions of Ten Princes not on-
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Chi Tou (the three sides of the step with
five—color glazed tiles) of the Great Gate of Qing

ly have the distinct Manchurian architectural
features, but also blend the cream of Chinese,
Mongolian and the other national architectu-
ral art.

The Grand Hall, with its double —eaves
octagonal structure, wooden structure, porch,
upturned eaves and arch and caisson ceiling
design and the like, follows the constructed
method and style of the Shong Dynasty,
which is the traditional formadlity of Chinese
architecture. And with the design of Xu Ni
foundation (sitting on an imposing 1.5 foun-
dation), the five—color glazed “flame ball” on

the top of the roof, the Dadan males with
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strong power on the eight ridges of the roof,
Sanskrit on ceiling, etc. it echoes the
Mongolian and Lamaism architectural fea-
tures. Being the wooden fan, the doors and
windows of the Hall were stuck outside with
which has the
charicteristic of north—east part in China.
The Hall, as the Grand Hall of Shenyang Im-

perial Palace, was where audiences and im-

korean paper, regional

portant ceremonies were held when a emper-
or came to the throne or gave a state banquet
and celebration or issued the edicts of march-
ing on, or welcame to generals and men for
their trimphant return, and so on.

The Great Gate of Qing is the main en-
trance of the Palace. Built in the five—bay
mountain style, its rooftop is padded with yel-
low—glazed tiles and green pelmets at the
borders and the three sides of all the steps
(Chi Tou) were faced with the five—color
glazed tiles, which with the design of dragons
in the sea and cloud and various auspicious
and wealthy creatures appears to be fine carv-
ing and lifelike. Being built gorgeously, the
Gate becomes a harmonious unified entity
with the whole imperial palace. It was com-
pleted and used in 1632 and named as the
“ Great Gate of Qing” that was written on
board at the first year of Chong De period
(1636) in Manchu, pronounced “ Daicing—
duka”.

Passing the Great Gate of Qing, a hall
erected on a square platform, called the Hall
of Civil Affairs and

“ Jinluandian”

also known as

(throne room). Built in

five—bay mountain style and flanked by twin
countyards with corridors in the front and
back, it is lined with richly carved stone bal-
ustrades and statues of auspicious creatures.
The roof—top is embellished with colored
glazed—tiles and inside, the beams carry fres-
cos of clouds, celestial peaches and the like.
There are the Sundial and the Measure on a
platform in the front of the Hall; and a paved
path no more than 100 metres lying between
the Gate and the Hall called “imperial road”.

The Hall of Civil Affairs, the main hall
of the Imperial Palace, was where Huangtaiji
went to the court and conducted state affairs.
Besides usually summoning military and civil
officials including chieftains of national mi-
nority, the nobility of Mongolia outside the
vassal state and messengers from korea, he

held some important ceremonies here. To the

east is the Pavilion of Flying Dragon and to

the west is the Pavilion of Soaring Phoenix.
Behind them,

stands on both the east and west sides, some

the Seven—room Building

treatures, imperial garments, bows and ar-
rows and painting and calligraph were:once
housed there.

Behind the Hall of Civil Affairs, the

Xiezhong Pavilion and the Xiayi Building:

erect on the east side of the countyard and on
the other side, the Shishan Pavilion and the
Rihua Building symmetrically stand. It was
said that all these places were where the
princes lived and read when they accom-
panied their fathers to east for inspection

tours.
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The Phoenix Pavilion, a three—storeyed
building with yellow glazed tiles on the roof
and green pelmets at the borders, sits on a
four—metre—high ‘foundation behind the Hall
of Civil Affairs. The Pavilion was the place
where the emperor and his consorts rested,
read and entertained. This is the highest of
the Shenyang Palace complexes and the view
from the top is unsurpassed. Here, the royals
assembled to watch the rising sun and the vis-
ta presented. It is considered one of the eight
finest views-of Shenyang.

Ascending the stairs of the Phoenix Pa-
vilion and crossing the lower doorway, one
enters a quadrangle where Huangtaiji and his
five consorts lived. The five Mongolian con-
sorts of illustrious status were Fu Jin
(Manchu means wife) Zhezhe Berjijite who
being the queen of Huangtaiji, occupied the
Palace of Tranquility and the other consorts

including the Chenfei Hailanzu lived in the

" Guanju Palace, the Guifei Namuzhong in

the Linzi Palace, the Shufei Buterma in the
Yanqing Palace and the ZhuangfeiBumubutaiin
the Yongfu Palace (which was the birthplace

of emperor Shun Zhi). The complex of five
palace buildings on the higher ground, espec-
ially the Palace of Tranquility with the style
of the “Pocket House” has rather distinct
Manchurian and regional architectural fea-
tures. The Palace of Tranquility, facing south
in the middle of complexes, was built in the
five—mountain style and flanked by twin
countyards with corridors in front and back.
The roof of the Palace is faced with the yel-
low—glazed tiles and green pelmets at the

borders and the middle of the ridge of the
roof with five—color glazed tiles has a design
of five—color flame ball and the either side of
it of dragons, phoenixes spreading wings for
flight and lotus in bud. The entrance of the
Palace is through the second chamber. The
eastern chamber was the bed chamber of
Huangtaiji and his empress named “ warm
room” , which with southern and northern
windows was divided into two rooms by a
screen, and in each room there is a heated
platform (called “Kang” ). The kang heated
by burning coal and wood is called the drag-
on bed (imperial bed). This design shows in-
genuity and is fit well for the northern cold

weather in China. The western four chambers

XHEES®E

of the Palace were the ancestral altars when
Manchu Shamaric rites were performed in
Shenyang Palace and theére were ancestral
shrine, the curtain of Buddha, and the altar

vessel, etc.. Here, an important Manchu

‘Shaman ritual involving the slaughtering of

pigs and the cooking of pork was perfomed.
A butchering table and large cooking pans
were appointed in the room for the purpose.
The ritual ceremonies were perfomed when-
ever during the reign of Huangtaiji and later
emperors visited to east after they had passed
Shanhaiguan. To the southeast of the Palace,
there stands a red pole with a square bottom
and a round top named “ Sou Lun Gan”,

which is a traditional sacred pole that the

Pavilion of Literary Sources & Pavilion of Tablet
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Caisson Ceiling Designs of the Grand Admini-
stration Hall

Manchu people used when offering sacrifices
to the gods. Broken rice and pig’s offal were
placed on the top of the pole to feed birds
and, in particular, crows. This practice means
to offer sacrifices to the Heaven. This sacred
pole still remains intact today.

The Eastern and Western Apartments ly-
ing on both the sides of the Palace of
Tranquility, as the temporary dewlling, pal-
ace of emperors when they visited to east for
inspection tours, were constructed in 1748
(the 13th year of Qian Long reign). The
three—bay mansion named “the Summer Pal-
ace” was single—eaved buildings where the

throne and funishings were installed for the
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relaxation of the queen mothers to whom the
empress also came to pay respects. The
five—bay mansion, the Jiezhi Palace, fur-
nished with beds and some beddings were the
bedrooms of queen mother. Behind this Pal-
ace 1s Jingdian Pavilion where the Imperial
‘Genealogy, Record of Reality and other
books and records of Qing court were
housed.

The Western Apartments were the tem-
porary dwelling palace of the emperor and his
consorts, with the hall standing in front of the
palace, their architectural forms are similar to
the eastern once. The front hall is known as
the Diguang Hall and the back palace called
the Baoji Palace. The eastern room of the
Baoji Palace was a lead room, however, the
other room on the west together with the
Diguang Hall both were where the emperor
rested and summoned his officers. Behind the
Baoji Palace, there lies a small and unique
building named the Pavilion of Continuing
Thought. The

architecturial pattern that the roof is com-

Pavilion has a distinc:
posed of three stacked awnings and the plan
of the building is a perfect square divided into
nine rooms
called

consorts who accompanied the emperor to

of equal size, commonly

Nine Room Pavilion. Here, the

Shenyang lived. Every room is interlinked by
a small door. A door, on the mid—south of
the Nine—room Pavilion, linked the Pavilion
with the Baoji Palace by a corridor. Inside
this Pavilion, there are a Buddhist hall, bed,

study and even “cleaning room”, and so on.

Behind the Pavilion is the Chongmo Pavilion
where the Old Manchu File and other histori-
cal records of the early Qing were preserved.
To the east of the Great Gate of Qing,
the Ancestral Temple (Tai Miao) was re-
moved and build, while the Temple of Heav-
en and the Altar of the Earth were con-
structed greatly in 1778, during the emperor
Qian Long toured Shenyang for the third
time. The Temple was reconstructed with
main five--bay -hall, side three—bay hall on
both the east and west sides. There is a small
door on either the east and west conner and
the Burning Silk Pavilion is set up in the front
of the main hall. The whole countyard-of the
Temple is established on a elevated ground
and it composes an independent quadrangle.
Before the Qing passed the Shanhaiguan, the
Temple had been set up at a distance of
five—li from the outside of the Great Eastern
Gate. Here, the four shrine tablets, Zhao
(Nurhaci’s remote ancestor Menggetiemuer),
Xing (great grandfather Fuman), Jing (grand
father Juechangan) and Xian (father Takesi),
were enshrined and worshipped. Following
the moving of capital to Beijing, the four
shrine tablets were also moved to Beijing’s
Tai Mao. Being reconstructed, the Temple of
Shenyang, different from what it was in the
early Qing, only collected Jade Seals and Jade
Writes worshipfully and now it has restored
its origional appearance. The Pavilion of
Literary Sources and the other building com-
plexes in the west were built in the middle and

later reign of Qian Long from 1778 to 1782.



The Pavilion was to be built in style of a
famed Ming dynasty library (TianYiGe) in
Zhejiang province, which specially houses
“the Comprehensive Collection of the Four
Kinds of Classics”, with its 168000 volumes,
it turns out to be the largest in size of ency-
clopedias in Chinese history. From the exte-
rior, the Literary Pavilion appears to be two
storeys high, but it has, in fact, three floors.
There is a stair case on the western end, and
the building is altogether six chambers wide.
The roof of the Pavilion is covered with black
glazed tiles while the lintels on the front and
back verandahs are dominatly blue and
green, giving the library an elegance unlike
that of the surrounding palace buildings.

To the north of the Literary Pavilion is
the Yahgxi Pavilion intended to be used by
the emperor for relaxation and the practice of
literary pursuits. In the front of it is a theatre
comprising of a Opera Stage and a Hall of
Auspicious Patronage The Opera Stage, see-
ing the name one thinks of its function, from
which the emperors and princes, dukes and
ministers could enjoy opera and please
themselves during they visited to northeast to
Shenyang.

Shenyang Imperial Palace covers an area
of 60,000 square metres, comprising over 100
buildings, more than 500 bays. Apart from
the main buildings on the above, it still have
some affiliated complexes, such as the Impe-
behind  the
Tranquility with the Imperial Meals House,
the Meat Tower, the Grain Mill of three—bay

rial  Garden Pavilion of

wide and the Storehouse of Twenty—
eight—bay, etc.. View of the Shenyang Impe-
rial Palace is lofty, impressive, dignified,
beautiful, imposing and solemn. Although
the scale of the Shenyang Imperial Palace is
smaller than that of Beijing’s Forbidden City,
it is still with the layout of the imperial
palace, in particular, it is prominent with its
strong national and regional features. The
Shenyang Imperial Palace Museum is a
Jarge—scale opening museum of historical and
artistical standards and it is famous with its
collecting and displaying of the historical her-
itages of Ming and Qing courts and artwares.
According to the historical cultural relics of
the Palace, the exhibition can be divided into
the origin, cultural relics and artwares. The
original exhibitions such as the Hall of Civil
Affairs, the Hall of Grand Adminstration,
The Palace of Tranquility, the Pavilion of
Literary Sources, etc.. The interior of the
halls or palaces on display is generally occu-
pied by panelled thrones, incense burners,
crane—shaped candle sticks and winewares,
cloisonne elephents symbolizing universal
peace and some other auspicious furnishings.
As a bed chamber, the palace room is natu-
rally possessed of beds, bedclothes, canopies,
tables, kneading boards, ordinary objects of
daily living and ornamental landscaps, treas-
ures, hanging and sitting panels. The above
original displays are mostly in accordance
with what their styles were during Qian Long
visited to Shenyang. The Exhibition of His-
torical Cultural Relics of the Qing Dynasty

adopted the form of specific subjects offering,
the Exhibition of the Weapons, the Exhibi-
tion of the Instruments and the Exhibition of
Cultural Relics of the Court, and so on. At
the Pavilions of Ten Princes, the long and
short weapons, such as the bows, arrors, guns
and other assistant weapons in volving
chimes (warning), chain armors, Eight—Ban-
ner armors and shields, etc. are on show.
Among these weapons, one can see Nurhaci’s
sword, Huangtaiji’s waist bagger, Shun Zhi’s
birch—bark bow, Qian Long’s waist bagger
and other rare cultural relics handed down
from ancient times. Moreover, this display al-
so include the valuable tally used when pas-
sing through and delivering the emperor’s
messages.

The Exhibition of the
are placed on both the Pavilion of Flying

Instruments
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Panelled Screen & Imperial Throne in the Hall of
Civil Affairs
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Dragon and the Pavilion of Soaring Phoenix.
The institution 9f music of the Qing court,
contains Zhongheshaoyue and Lu Bu Yue
(the music used when the emperor was start-
ing off). The Zhongheshaoyue can be plaved n
the instruments such as serials bells, drum,
she (25—stringed plucked instrument), qin,
flute, xiao (a vertical bamboo flute), and so
on. All these instruments displayed here can
produce all the eight musical notes. However,
the Chinese wind and percussion instruments
as cymbals, dian, zheng (a chinese with 21 or
25-strings), and other instruments can be
used to play Lu Bu Yue, which are also on
exhibition here.

The Exhibition of the Cultural Relics of
the Qing court, being a temporarily special
exhibition, is on both the sides of the Hall of
Auspicious Patronage (in the middle of the
Hall is an imitative exhibition on the origin of
the emperor Jia Qing enjoying opera). There
are dinners, glass wares, fans, the scholar’s
four treasures (inkstick, inkstone, brush and
paper), furniture, clocks, and so on.

The Exhibition on Works of Art is in the
five-palace sitting on the elevated ground in
which we have such excellent artistic treasures
of the Ming and Qing period, as painting and
calligraphy, porcelain, carving, lacquer ware,
jade ware, cloisonne, embroidery and weav-
ing, and the like.

It is in the studio of the Yangqing Palace
that the opulent collection of painting and
calligraphy of the Ming and Qing period are

on show in turn. The accomplishments on
- 14

calligraphy were remarkable during the Ming
and Qing Period. The Notes of Old Drinker’s
Pavilion calligraphy by Wen Zhenming is
strong, bold and unconstrained and
“ Luo—Shen—Fu” (compose a poem for the
luo—river Fairy) by Zhu Runming is chang-
ing constantly and naturally formed, they are
both excellent works. The works of the ex-
perts Dong Qichang, Zhang Ruitu and others
shaped the style of their own and each had
his strong points.

There are a lot of excellent works of
painting during the Ming and Qing period.

Owing to the draws painted by scholars of

S 18] P9 5

the Ming Dynasty were very flourishing, the
schools assuming many and various colors
appeared to be various and different. From
the painting collection Boating in Autumn
painted by Shen Zhou and Clear Stream,
Green Trees and Wild Geese painted by
Dong Bangda are some powerful and exqui-
site, while Pine of Mount Tai painted by
Yuan Shangtong, Plum Blossoms and Mag-
pies painted by Chen Jiayan have the same
points as well as their own strong points.It is
rated the the six schools included the four
Wangs, Wu and Yun as the main school in

the painting of the Qing, among them,the

Interior of the Pavilion of Literary Source



painting A Study in the Forest in Autumn by
Wang Hui is natural and vigorous, which
combined the south and north branch into
one part. In the callateral branch, Four
Monks, Eight Strangs of Jinling (Nanjing)
and Painting Scholar of Yangzhou, all of
them have their own productions that will be
handed down from age to age and both the
painting schools of tradition and the branch
are advanced side by side. Innumerable
Mountains, Valleys an Pines by Hua Yan and
Riding in the Snow Hooking for Plums by

Huang Shen.etc. of the Museum collections

Interior of a Mansion in the Jiezhi Palace

may be rated as a fine works of art. Finger
painting Mandarin Ducks in a Pond under
Willows by Gao Qipei, etc. are famous all
over the world and Western Dog in the Shade
of the Bamboo by western calligrapher Lang
Sining is also a fine work.

The Carving Works of Art on show at
Linzhi Palace and Yanging Palace, are carv-
ings of jade, jadeite, agate, crystal and vari-
ous material bamboo, wood, ivory and stone.
The kind of carved jade is the most advanced
in Qing Dynasty. The colors of white, green,

dark, yellow, black and other of carved jade

have all. The kind of carved jade include gift
ware, ritual ware, furnishing, ornaments of
hair, worn ornaments, tools of study, doll,
and so on-All of these carving are exquisitely,
elegent and magnificent. For example, Jade
Vase in the Form of Magnolia Flower is just
like flurishing orchid and Carved Jasper
Augpicious Animal Figure with Carved a
Bottle, Carved Root Double Tigers Figures,
etc. are lifelike and they seem to be moving.
Carved Ivory Small Decorative Panel with a
picture and characters about one thousand
word “ Lou—Shen—Fu” was carved on the
0.4cm thick ivory carving board, which can
be seen clearly under high degree magnifier
and this craft called peerless work.

The porcelain enaml at Guanju Palace,
cloisonne and lacquerware is on shown at
eastern and western secondary palaces, which
collected the finest articles of the Shenyang
Palace. China, as her name shows, is noted
for her porcelain production throughout the
world. Porcelain in the Qing period was
well-developed. From the viewpoint of art
history, Chinese porcelain reached its high
point during the reigns of Kang Xi, Yong
Zheng and Qian Long of the Qing Dynasty.
It produced by the imperial kilns during this
period has never been surpassed, formed the
centre of porcelain production at Jingdezhen
(Zhejiang province of China). The porcelain
of the Shenyang Palace Museum collection
are the most produced during this period.
The porcelain of Su San Cai (plain three col-

or), Wu Cai (five colors), Sacrificial red,
15
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Cowpea red, etc. reflected the features of that
times, such as Blue Glazed Plate with Yellow
Dragon Motif and characters the Kang Xi
imperial reign—mark,Polychrome (five—color)
Gu (flower vessel) with charaters the Kang Xi
imperial reign—mark, etc, are the highest
grade. The porcelain  production  during
the Yong Zheng period had made a great
achievement on the aspect of blazing
new trails as well as modelling after an
antique. During the reign of Qian Long, it
succeeded the old times and also gained de-
velopment. For example, Winter—blue
Glazed Long—neck Vase with horse—shaped
handles and characters the Yong Zheng im-
perial reign—mark, Dou Cai (contrasting col—
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ored) Dish with dragon and phoenix motif
and characters the Qian Long imperial
reign—mark, Fen Cai (famille rose)
Lantern—shaped Vase with a design of
children at playing, are the finest articles, that
will continue to evoke admiration.

There ' has been a long history of
lacquerware making in china. By the time of
the Qing Dynasty, variety of designs had
been increased and the techniques had been
improved. Many of the lacquerwares made
here were vases, wine vessels, plates and cases
or caskets of various patterns. Table plaques
and hanging plaques were also popular.
Handicraft articles which require the most
carved

exquisite workmanship are

lacquerwares, represented by the red carved
lacquerware. For this kind of work, the
elegantly tangling patterns are carved out on
a layer of thick dark red lacquer. For exam-
ple, Red Lacquer Globular Vase with carved
designs of scenery and figures in relief and
Red Lacquer Round Box with carved designs
of dragons and characters the Qian Long im-
perial reign—mark.

Enamelwares are a resulting product of
integrated traditional Chinese metalworkin
and foreign craftmanship. Being very popular
during the Jingtai period of the Ming, the
blue is the main color in the glaze, therefore
enamelware is called “Jingtailan” (closinne).
The bright glaze, the complicated patterns
and the glistening gilt decorations all make
the wares seen extraordinarily delicate and
have special artistic effects.

The garments and warvings are a high
proportion of the historical and cultural relics
of the Museum collection, from which one
can catch sight of Huangtaiji’s imperial yel-
low dragon satin robe, emperor Jia Qing's
imperial dragon robe and the winter court at-
tire of emperor Xian Feng. They all may be
rated as the fine workmanship that will be
handed down from age to age.

Inside this picture album, we selected
some fine articals from the handed—down ob-
jects of the Qing Court, Porcelain,
Lacquerware, Enamelwork and Carving,
Furnishings, Garment of the Qing Court and
Painting of the Qing and Ming. The pictures

in the album totalled more then 160.



